BCP

Notice of Licensing Sub-Committee Cotrll

Date: Wednesday, 24 September 2025 at 10.15 am

Venue: HMS Phoebe, BCP Civic Centre, Bournemouth BH2 6DY

Membership:
Clir P Canavan Clir D A Flagg Clir J Richardson
Reserves:

Clir E Harman (R1)

All Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are summoned to attend this meeting to
consider the items of business set out on the agenda below.

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following
link:

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5877
if you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please
contact: Michelle Cutler on 01202 128581 on 01202 096660 or

email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 118686 or
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk

'8 o
[mlbwil=] ¢
ICEE Y ¢
AIDAN DUNN o2
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DEBAT = S5 k)
=S
16 September 2025 E - z§6 B

BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY



Maintaining and promoting high standards of conduct

Declaring interests at meetings
Familiarise yourself with the Councillor Code of Conduct which can be found in
Part 6 of the Council’'s Constitution.

Before the meeting, read the agenda and reports to see if the matters to be
discussed at the meeting concern your interests

Does the matter directly relate to one of my Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs)
(set out in Table 1)?

Does the matter directly relate to the
finances or wellbeing of one of my Other
Registerable Interests (ORIs)

(set out in Table 2)?

| have a DPI and cannot take part without
a dispensation

I have an ORI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

Does it directly relate to the finances or
wellbeing of me, a relative or a close
associate?

| have a NRI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the

Does it affect the finances or wellbeing of
me, a relative or a close associate or any
of my ORIs?

Am | or they affected to a greater extent that
most people? And would a reasonable person
think my judgementis clouded?

| have an interest and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

| have no interest to disclose

What are the principles of bias and pre-determination and how do they affect my
participation in the meeting?

Bias and predetermination are common law concepts. If they affect you, your
participation in the meeting may call into question the decision arrived at on the
item.

Bias Test Predetermination Test

In all the circumstances, would it
lead a fair minded and informed
observer to conclude that there was
areal possibility or a real danger that mind?

At the time of making the decision,
did the decision maker have a closed

the decision maker was biased?

.

If a councillor appears to be biased or to have predetermined their decision,
they must NOT participate in the meeting.

For more information or advice please contact the Monitoring Officer

Councillors should act solely
in terms of the public
interest

Councillors must avoid
placing themselves under
any obligation to people or
organisations that might try
inappropriately to influence
them in their work. They
should not act or take
decisions in order to gain
financial or other material
benefits for themselves,
their family, or their friends.
They must declare and
resolve any interests and
relationships

Objectivity

Councillors must act and
take decisions impartially,
fairly and on merit, using the
best evidence and without
discrimination or bias

Accountability

Councillors are accountable
to the public for their
decisions and actions and
must submit themselves to
the scrutiny necessaryto
ensure this

Councillors should act and
take decisions in an open
and transparent manner.
Information should not be
withheld from the public
unless there are clear and
lawful reasons for so doing

Honesty & Integrity

Councillors should act with
honesty and integrity and
should not place themselves
in situations where their
honesty and integrity may
be questioned

Leadership

Councillors should exhibit
these principles in their own
behaviour. They should
actively promote and
robustly support the
principles and be willing to
challenge poor behaviour
wherever it occurs




AGENDA

ltems to be considered while the meeting is open to the public

Election of Chair

To elect a Chair of this meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee.

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence from Members.

Declarations of Interests

Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance.

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting.

Protocol for Public Speaking at Licensing Hearings

The protocol for public speaking at Licensing Sub Committee hearings is
included with the agenda sheet for noting.

Exclusion of Press and Public

In relation to the items of business appearing below, the Committee is
asked to consider the following resolution: -

‘That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2 in Part | of Schedule 12A of the Act and that
the public interest in withholding the information outweighs such interest in
disclosing the information.’

Consideration of suitability for a new Hackney Carriage/ Private Hire
Driver Applicant

To consider whether the driver is a fitand proper’ person to continue with
the application process to become the holder of a Hackney Carriage and/or
Private Hire driver licence.

This matter is brought to the Licensing Sub Committee for determination.

Consideration of continued suitability to hold a Private Hire Driver
Licence

To consider whether the driver remains a “fit and proper’ person to hold a
Private Hire driver licence.

This matter is brought to the Licensing Sub Committee for determination.

11-40

41 - 58



No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.



Agenda ltem 4

LICENSING COMMITTEE AND SUB COMMITTEE —PROTOCOL FOR
PUBLIC SPEAKING

1. Introduction

1.1  This protocol for public speaking applies to Licensing Committee and Sub
Committee hearings in relation to matters including the licensing of alcohol,
regulated entertainment, late night refreshment, gambling, sex establishments
and hackney carriage and private hire drivers, vehicles and operators, as set
out in Part 3.3 of the Council’s Constitution.

1.2 These matters are considered in accordance with relevant legislation and
associated regulations including the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by the
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011), the Gambling Act 2005,
Part Il and Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1982 (as amended by Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009) and
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

2. ConductofHearings

2.1  Chair welcomes everyone, matters of general housekeeping are dealt with,
notification that the hearing may be recorded for live and subsequent
broadcast on the Council’'s website, reminder to switch mobile phones to
silent, etc.

2.2  Chair asks everyone present to introduce themselves and state their role.

2.3  Chair checks that all persons who have given notice of their intention to speak
and any person who wishes to withdraw a representation or wishes not to
speak have been identified.

2.4  Chair explains proposed procedure and order of speaking for hearing as set
out in Appendix A or B of this protocol as appropriate. All parties confirm
agreement or make representations on procedure proposed.

2.5 Licensing Officer's report is presented.
2.6  Parties speak in the order agreed.

2.7  With the exception of hackney carriage and private hire hearings, parties who
are speaking should not repeat the information which they have already given
in writing in their representation. They will be able to expand on the written
information given, provided the information remains relevant. Any additional
information should be limited to the grounds of their representation(s). For
example, if they are objecting on the grounds of Public Nuisance, then they
should confine their comments to matters relating to Public Nuisance.



2.8 Members of the Licensing Committee or Sub Committee may ask questions
after each party has spoken and once all parties have spoken. Parties will be
allowed to ask questions through the Chair.

2.9 Once all parties have been heard, the parties will be given the opportunity to
sum up. Party who spoke first to go last. The hearing will then conclude.

2.10 Members will deliberate in private with the clerk and legal representative as
appropriate present.

2.11 The decisionwill be taken by the Committee and notification of the decision
will be given as follows:

2.11.1 For Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005 hearings,
determination must be within the period of five working days beginning
with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held in
accordance with the relevant Regulations, unless otherwise specified
(for example, the issuing of a counter notice following objection to a
TEN, in which case the determination must be at the conclusion of the
hearing).

2.11.2 For Sex Establishment and other hearings, where possible
determination will be within the period of five working days beginning
with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held.

2.11.3 For Hackney Carriage and Private Hire hearings, notification of the
decision will be given at the conclusion of the hearing, followed by a
written decision letter where possible within the period of five working
days beginning with the day or the last day on which the hearing was
held.

2.12 Notification of the decision will include information for all parties of any right of
appeal as appropriate.

3 General points

3.1 Hearings convened under the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005
and associated regulations may be held remotely as required, if the Chairman
agrees it is expedient to do so in the circumstances.

3.2 The hearing may be adjourned at any time at the discretion of the Members.

3.3 Members may amend the procedure at any time if they consider it to be in the
public interest or in the interest of a fair hearing.

3.4  The Sub Committee may decide to conduct all or part of a hearing in non-
public session in accordance with the relevant Regulations and/or where
exempt information is likely to be disclosed.



3.5 The Chair may exclude any person from a hearing for being disruptive.

3.6  Meetings of the Licensing Committee in public session are recorded by the
Council for live and subsequent broadcast on its website.

3.7  The hearing will take the form of a discussion.

3.8  Only persons (or their representatives) who have made an application, are
subject to an application or have submitted a written representation or
objection to the Licensing Authority under the relevant Act are permitted to
speak at the hearing.

3.9 Any further information to support an application, representation, objection or
notice (as applicable) can be submitted before the hearing. It may only be
submitted at the hearing with the consent of all parties in accordance with any
relevant Regulations. Wherever possible the Licensing Authority encourages
parties to submit information at the earliest opportunity to allow sufficient time
for this to be considered before the hearing and avoid the need for
adjournment.

3.10 If a party has informed the Authority that they do not intend to participate, or
be represented at the hearing, or has failed to advise whether they intend to
participate or not, the hearing may proceed in their absence.

3.11 For other matters which are the responsibility of the Licensing Committee and
not included in this protocol, the Meeting Procedure Rules in Part 4D of the
Council’'s Constitution in relation to public questions, statements and petitions
shall apply. This includes such matters as making recommendations on
relevant licensing policies, approving the level of fees charged by the Council,
and making decisions on tariffs charged by the Public Carriage Trade.

3.12 The Council’'s Constitution can be accessed using the following link:
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteelD=151&
Info=1&bcr=1

For further information please contact democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
mailto:democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Appendix A

Proposedprocedure and order of speakingfor hearings (other than
hackney carriage and private hire hearings)

1. The Licensing Officer presents report.

2. Questions of the Licensing Officer on their report. Members of the Sub-
Committee to go first, then the applicant/licence holder.

3. Applicant will make their Application.

4. Questions of the Applicant by all parties, Members of the Committee/Sub-
Committee to go first.

5. Responsible Authorities and Other Persons will make their representations.

6. Questions of the Responsible Authorities and Other Persons. Members of the
Committee/Sub-Committee to go first.

7. All parties will be given an opportunity to sum up (with the party who spoke
last to go first). The hearing will then conclude.

8. Sub-Committee will deliberate in private with Legal Adviser and Clerk present.
(Councillors new to Licensing may observe but will not take part in the
decision making).

9. Notification of the Sub Committee’s decision will be given in accordance with
the requirements of the Licensing Act and Gambling Act regulations. For other
hearings, where possible determination will be within the period of five
working days beginning with the day or the last day on which the hearing was
held.

10.The notification of decision will include information about the right of appeal as
appropriate.



Appendix B

Proposedprocedure and order of speaking for Hackney Carriage
and Private Hire hearings

1.

2.

The Licensing Officer presents their report.

Questions of the Licensing Officer on their report. Members of the Sub-
Committee to go first, then the applicant/licence holder.

Applicant/licence holder presents their case.

Questions of the applicant/licence holder by all parties, Members of the
Committee/Sub-Committee to go first.

All parties will be given an opportunity to sum up (with the party who spoke
last to go first). The Hearing will then conclude.

Sub-Committee will deliberate in private with Legal Adviser and Clerk present.
(Councillors new to Licensing may observe deliberations but will not take part
in the decision making).

Notification of the decision will be given following deliberations at the
conclusion of the hearing, to be followed by a written decision letter where
possible within the period of five working days beginning with the day or the
last day on which the hearing was held.

The Legal Adviser will advise parties of any right of appeal as appropriate at
the conclusion of the Hearing. Information about the right of appeal as
appropriate will also be included in the written decision letter.

Adopted by the Licensing Committee on 7.12.23



This page is intentionally left blank

10



Agenda ltem 6

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE BCP

Council

Report subject

Consideration of suitability for a new Hackney Carriage/
Private Hire Driver Applicant

Meeting date

24 September 2025

Status

Public Report with Exempt Appendices

Executive summary

The Taxi Licensing Authority received a New Driver Application.
This applicant previously held a Public Carriage Licence with BCP
Council, until November 2024 when this was revoked.

Recommendations

It is RECOMMENDED that:

The Licensing Sub-Committee determine whether the driver is a it
and proper’ person to continue with the application process to
become the holder of a Hackney Carriage and/or Private Hire driver
licence.

The following options are available: -
a) If deemed fit and proper the application can continue

b) If not deemed fit and proper the application should be
refused.

Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are asked to decide at
the end of the hearing after all relevant parties have been given the
opportunity to speak. Members must give full reasons for their
decision.

Reason for
recommendations

Section 51(1) and 59(1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976, provides that a district council shall not grant
a licence — unless they are satisfied that the applicant is a fit and
proper person to hold a driver’s licence.

The Council’s Constitution sets out the responsibility of functions to
the Licensing Committee and to officers. The Licensing Committee
has further delegated decisions relating to public carriage licensing
matters to Licensing Sub-Committee.

Section 7.1 of the BCP Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Driver Policy 2021 - 2025 states anyone wishing to make an
application must prove to BCP Council that they are fit and proper
to be issued with such a driver’s licence.

Section 7.10 states applications will be assessed with reference to

11




the ‘Fit and Proper’ criteria as set out in Chapter 8. If you are
deemed not to meet the criteria your application will be rejected

Portfolio Holder(s): Councillor Kieron Wilson — Portfolio Holder for Housing and

Regulatory Services

Corporate Director Glynn Barton— Operations

Report Authors Wesley Freeman- Licensing Officer
Wards Council-wide

Classification For Decision

Background

1. The Licensing Team received an application for a New Public Carriage Driver’s
Licence.

2. This applicant previously held a Public Carriage Licence with BCP Council. The
licence was revoked with immediate effect on the 13 November 2024 in the interest
of public safety.

3. Appendix 1 contains the complete information provided by Dorset Police regarding
an incident which occurred in Poole on the 27 October 2024 and actions taken by
the Licensing Authority.

4. An application for a new BCP Public Carriage licence has now been received. The
driver was asked to make a statementto support the application and give reasons
for the new driver application. The application form and statement can be found
attached as Appendix 2.

5. The Dorset Police officer who investigated the incident from October 2024 was also

asked for a statementto be considered as part of the Sub-Committee’s
determinations and this is attached as Appendix 3.

Test of Fit and Proper Person

6.

‘Fit and proper person’ is a phrase that occurs in legislation but there is no judicially
approved definition or test of fitness. In the absence of such a test, the Licensing
Sub-Committee must look at the whole of a person’s character before determining
their suitability to hold a licence.

The BCP Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Policy 2021-2025,
Chapter 8 sets the Fit and Proper Person test and in particular at paragraphs

8.2 Passengers are potentially vulnerable when being transported due to; their
age, unaccompanied children, people with a disability, those who may have
consumed excessive quantities of alcohol, lone people and overseas’ visitors
or tourists to the area.

12




8.3 The Licensing Authority has a duty to take a robust stance in ensuring that
applicants and licence holders are and remain fit and proper’ to hold a
licence at all times.

8.10 In essence a fit and proper’ person;

o should not be violent, abusive or threatening in their behaviour even if
subjected to unpleasant, confrontational or dishonest passenger behaviour
or when subject to enforcement action from officers.

o should be honest, trustworthy and have integrity, as they have access toa
large amount of personal information that could be misused with significant
opportunity to defraud passengers in drink or under the influence of drugs,
the vulnerable or overseas passengers, or to steal property left in their
vehicles.

8.12 The Licensing Authority will consider all information provided to it from
sources such as the Police, Children and Adults Safeguarding Boards,
Passenger Services and other statutory agencies. Existing licence holders will
also have previous history/outcomes during their time as a licensed driver
/operator or previous applicant taken into account and their ability to work
constructively and positively with the Licensing Authority.

8.13 The Licensing Authority will consider all criminal history, unacceptable
behaviour and conduct, irrespective of whether the specific history, behaviour or
conduct occurred whilst drivers were directly engaged in Private Hire or Hackney
Carriage work at the time or whether they occurred during the driver’s own
personal time

8. The BCP Driver Policy within Appendix C addresses reapplication at paragraph
15. This states:-

Where an applicant has previously had a licence revoked by the Council the
Authority will not, save in exceptional circumstances, consider any further
application from the applicant for a period of three years from the date of the
Authority’s decision or, if that decision was appealed against and the appeal was
dismissed, abandoned, or otherwise failed, from the date of the dismissal,
abandonment or other failure of the appeal, whichever is the later.

9. Members are also asked to consider the guidance within the Statutory Taxi and
Private Hire Vehicle Standards issued by the Department for Transport which was
updated in November in 2022. Paragraph 3 states:-

The primary and overriding objective of licensing (the taxi and PHV trade) must
be to protect the public. The importance of ensuring that the licensing regime
protects the vulnerable cannot be overestimated.

10. Chapter 5 sets out guidance for decision makers. Particularly paragraphs 5.4 to
5.6 state

Licensing authorities have a duty to ensure that any person to whom they grant a
taxi or private hire vehicle driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to be a
licensee. It may be helpful when considering whether an applicant or licensee is
fit and proper to pose oneself the following question:

13



Without any prejudice, and based on the information before you, would you allow
a person for whom you care, regardless of their condition, to travel alone in a
vehicle driven by this person at any time of day or night?

If, on the balance of probabilities, the answer to the question is no, the individual
should not hold a licence.

Licensing authorities have to make difficult decisions but (subject to the General
principles) the safeguarding of the public is paramount. All decisions on the
suitability of an applicant or licensee should be made on the balance of
probability. This means that an applicant or licensee should not be given the
benefit of doubt. If the committee or delegated officer is only 50/50 as to whether
the applicant or licensee is fit and proper, they should not hold a licence. The
threshold used here is lower than for a criminal conviction (that being beyond
reasonable doubt) and can take into consideration conduct that has not resulted
in a criminal conviction.

11. The Institute of Licensing Suitability Guidance published in November 2024
Chapter 3 states that taxi and private hire vehicles are used regularly particularly
by vulnerable groups and a taxi or private hire driver has significant power over a
passenger who places themselves and their personal safety completely in the
drivers’ hands.

The Guidance also reminds us in Paragraph 3.31 that: -

Case law makes it clear that the impact of losing (or not being granted) a driver’s
licence on the applicant and their family is not a consideration that can be taken
into account.

Leeds City Council v Hussain [2002] EWHC 1145 (Admin), [2003] RTR 199
Admin Crtand Cherwell District Council v Anwar [2011] EWHC 2943 (Admin),
[2012] RTR 15 Admin Crt.

12. Members should apply the requirements of the BCP Taxi and Private Hire Driver’s
Policy and this guidance when considering whether this applicant is a fit and
proper person to hold a public carriage driver’s licence

Options Appraisal

13. Members are asked to consider all the information provided and then take one of the
following options:

a) If deemed fit and proper the application can continue

b) If not deemed fit and proper the application will be refused

Summary of financial implications

14. There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Summary of legal implications

15. Anyone aggrieved by a decision has the right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court
within a period of 21 days beginning with the day that the applicant is notified, in
writing, of the decision.

14



Summary of human resources implications

16. There are no human resources implications arising from this report.

Summary of sustainability impact

17. There are no sustainability implications arising from this report.

Summary of public health implications

18. There are no public health implications arising from this report

Summary of equality implications

19. There are no equality implications arising from this report.

Summary of risk assessment

20. There are no risk assessmentimplications arising from this report.
Background papers

BCP Council's Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Policy (2021-2025) Taxi-and-
Private-Hire-Drivers-Policy

BCP Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Policy (2021-2025) BCP-
Hackney-Carriage-and-Private-Hire-Vehicle-Policy

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

Institute of Licensing Guidance on determining the suitability of applicants and licensees
in the hackney and private hire trades Institute of Licensing

Department of Transport Statutory taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards July 2020
updated in November 2022 Statutory taxi and private hire vehicle standards - GOV.UK

Appendices

Appendix 1- Dorset Police Information
Appendix 2- Driver Application and statement
Appendix 3- Dorset Police Statement

15


https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/business/Taxi-and-Private-Hire-Drivers-Policy.pdf
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/business/Taxi-and-Private-Hire-Drivers-Policy.pdf
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/business/BCP-Hackney-Carriage-and-Private-Hire-Vehicle-Policy.pdf
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/business/BCP-Hackney-Carriage-and-Private-Hire-Vehicle-Policy.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1976/57
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1976/57
https://iol.instituteoflicensing.org/articles/673ef9973bb4ad0008d7882a
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards

This page is intentionally left blank

16



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

17



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

21



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

35



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE BCP

Council

Report subject

Consideration of continued suitability to hold a Private Hire
Driver Licence

Meeting date

24 September 2025

Status

Public Report with Exempt Appendices

Executive summary

The Licensing Team have received several complaints regarding
the standard of driving by this licenced driver; the complaints
indicate a clear pattern of behaviour which the driver has not
addressed despite informal actions taken by officers in the form of
guidance and support.

As per our phased approach to enforcement, this matter is now
being escalated to the licensing - committee to determine the
ongoing suitability of this driver to continue to hold a licence

Recommendations

Itis RECOMMENDED that:

The Licensing Sub-Committee determine whether the driver
remains a ‘fit and proper person to hold a Private Hire driver
licence.

The following options are available: -

Written Caution

Suspension for a defined period
Revocation

Take alternative action

Take no action

©coooTw

Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are asked to decide
at the end of the hearing after all relevant parties have been
given the opportunity to speak which option is appropriate.
Members must give full reasons for their decision.

Reason for
recommendations

Section 61 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976 allows the Council to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew a
drivers Licence for any reasonable cause.

Section 51(1) and 59(1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976, provides that a district council shall not grant

a licence — unless they are satisfied that the applicant is a fit and
proper person to hold a driver’s licence.

The Council's Constitution sets out the responsibility of functions

41




and of officers. The Licensing Committee has delegated decisions
relating to public carriage licensing matters which fall outside of
existing policies and disciplinary matters to Licensing Sub-

Committee.

42




Portfolio Holder(s): Councillor Kieron Wilson — Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Regulatory Services
Corporate Director Glynn Barton — Chief Operations Officer
Report Authors Michelle Fletcher - Licensing Officer
Wards Council-wide
Classification For Decision
Background

1. This individual has held a Private Hire Drivers Licence Since 2004
2. Current records date back to 2018 due to data retention rules.

3. the licensing authority have been forwarded ongoing complaints about the
standard of driver’s driving reported via the driver’s Private Hire Operator see
Appendix 1

4. The Licensing Team have undertaken various actions available to them to assist,
provide information and engage with this driver. Despite this, further complaints
regarding the standard of driving continue to be received. As such in the interest of
public safety the matter is now referred to committee to determine if this driver
remains a fit and proper person and suitable to hold a licence.

Test of Fit and Proper Person

5. ‘Fit and proper person’ is a phrase that occurs in legislation but there is no judicially
approved definition or test of fitness. In the absence of such a test, the Licensing

Sub-Committee must look at the whole of a person’s character before determining
their suitability to hold a licence.

6. The BCP Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Policy 2021-2025, sets
out in Chapter 8 the Fit and Proper Person testand in particular at paragraphs

8.3 The Licensing Authority has a duty to take a robust stance in ensuring that
applicants and licence holders are and remain it and proper’ to hold a
licence at all times.

8.10 In essence a fit and proper’ person;

o should display safe and competent driving standards, as they are
professional drivers and should be fully aware of all road traffic legislation,
the safety of their passengers and the safety of their vehicles at all times.

8.13 The Licensing Authority will consider all criminal history, unacceptable
behaviour and conduct, irrespective of whether the specific history, behaviour or
conduct occurred whilst drivers were directly engaged in Private Hire or Hackney
Carriage work at the time or whether they occurred during the driver’s own
personal time

43



7. Members are also asked to consider the guidance within the Statutory Taxi and
Private Hire Vehicle Standards issued by the Department for Transport which was
updated in November in 2022. Paragraph 3 states:-

The primary and overriding objective of licensing (the taxi and PHYV trade) must
be to protect the public. The importance of ensuring that the licensing regime
protects the vulnerable cannot be overestimated.

8. Chapter 5 sets out guidance for decision makers. Particularly paragraphs 5.4 to
5.6 state

Licensing authorities have a duty to ensure that any person to whom they grant a
taxi or private hire vehicle driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to be a
licensee. It may be helpful when considering whether an applicant or licensee is
fit and proper to pose oneself the following question:

Without any prejudice, and based on the information before you, would you allow
a person for whom you care, regardless of their condition, to travel alone in a
vehicle driven by this person at any time of day or night?

If, on the balance of probabilities, the answer to the question is no, the individual
should not hold a licence.

Licensing authorities have to make difficult decisions but (subject to the General
principles) the safeguarding of the public is paramount. All decisions on the
suitability of an applicant or licensee should be made on the balance of
probability. This means that an applicant or licensee should not be given the
benefit of doubt. If the committee or delegated officer is only 50/50 as to whether
the applicant or licensee is fit and proper, they should not hold a licence. The
threshold used here is lower than for a criminal conviction (that being beyond
reasonable doubt) and can take into consideration conduct that has not resulted
in a criminal conviction.

9. The Institute of Licensing Suitability Guidance published in November 2024
Chapter 3 states that taxi and private hire vehicles are used regularly particularly
by vulnerable groups and a taxi or private hire driver has significant power over a
passenger who places themselves and their personal safety completely in the
drivers’ hands.

The Guidance also remains us in Paragraph 3.31 that: -

Case law makes it clear that the impact of losing (or not being granted) a driver’s

licence on the applicant and their family is not a consideration that can be taken
into account.

Leeds City Council v Hussain [2002] EWHC 1145 (Admin), [2003] RTR 199
Admin Crtand Cherwell District Council v Anwar [2011] EWHC 2943 (Admin),
[2012] RTR 15 Admin Crt.

10. Members should apply the requirements of the BCP Taxi and Private Hire Driver’s
Policy and this guidance when considering whether this applicant is a fit and
proper person to hold a public carriage driver’s licence

44



Options Appraisal

11. Members are asked to consider all the information provided and then take one of
the following options:

Written Caution

Suspension for a defined period
Revocation

Take alternative action

Take no action

PeooTR

Summary of financial implications

12. There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Summary of legal implications

13. Anyone aggrieved by a decision has the right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court
within a period of 21 days beginning with the day that the applicant is notified, in
writing, of the decision.

Summary of human resources implications

14. There are no human resources implications arising from this report.

Summary of sustainability impact

15. There are no sustainability implications arising from this report.

Summary of public health implications
16. There are no public health implications arising from this report.
Summary of equality implications

17. There are no equality implications arising from this report.

Summary of risk assessment

18. There are no risk assessmentimplications arising from this report.
Background papers

BCP Council's Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Policy (2021-2025) Taxi-and-
Private-Hire-Drivers-Policy

BCP Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Policy (2021-2025) BCP-
Hackney-Carriage-and-Private-Hire-Vehicle-Policy

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

Institute of Licensing Guidance on determining the suitability of applicants and licensees
in the hackney and private hire trades Institute of Licensing

Department of Transport Statutory taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards July 2020
updated in November 2022 Statutory taxi and private hire vehicle standards - GOV.UK

45


https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/business/Taxi-and-Private-Hire-Drivers-Policy.pdf
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/business/Taxi-and-Private-Hire-Drivers-Policy.pdf
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/business/BCP-Hackney-Carriage-and-Private-Hire-Vehicle-Policy.pdf
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/business/BCP-Hackney-Carriage-and-Private-Hire-Vehicle-Policy.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1976/57
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1976/57
https://iol.instituteoflicensing.org/articles/673ef9973bb4ad0008d7882a
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Driver history and complaints
Appendix 2 — Written warning
Appendix 3 — Letter — driver competency assessment

46



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,3,4,5,6a,7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

a7



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

55



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

57



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Protocol for Public Speaking at Licensing Hearings
	6 Consideration of suitability for a new Hackney Carriage/ Private Hire Driver Applicant
	Appendix 1- Dorset Police Information
	Appendix 2- Driver Application and Statement
	Appendix 3- Dorset Police Statement

	7 Consideration of continued suitability to hold a  Private Hire Driver Licence
	Appendix 1 - Driver history and complaints
	Appendix 2 Written warning
	Appendix 3 – Letter - driving assessment


